April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 1 of 17

MINUTES
JOINT PUBLIC HEARING
HILLSBOROUGH TOWN BOARD and PLANNING BOARD
Thursday, April 17, 2008
7:00 PM in the Gordon Battle Courtroom of the Nevai@e County Courthouse

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Commissioners Frances Dancy, Evelyn Lloyd, Mike
Gering, L. Eric Hallman, and Brian Lowen.
ABSENT: Mayor Tom Stevens, absence excused.

PLANNING BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair Matthew Farrelly, Dan Barker, Kate Fahgerty
Neil Jones, Dave Remington, Barrie Wallace, Stephéitlow, and Elizabeth Woodman.

STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director Margaret Hauth, Town AttornBgb Hornik, and Assistant
Town Manager Nicole Ard.

ITEM #1: Call to Order.

Commissioner Mike Gering called the public heatimgrder at 7:04 p.m. He did not read the Public
Charge but noted it would be followed. CommissioBering then turned the gavel over to Planning
Board Chair Matthew Farrelly.

ITEM #2: Annexation request for Hugh and Carolyn Moren to annex the corrected
alignment area for the connection of Cates Creek Parkway to Old NC 86 (part of
TMBL 4.45..2¢)

Ms. Hauth stated this was an annexation requesfusarthe corridor that would align Cates Creek

Parkway with the Lafayette Drive entrance and tt@me into the traffic circle at Waterstone.

Mr. Farrelly indicated that no one had signed upgeak on this item.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Gering, seconded bsni@issioner Lowen, the Board moved to
close the public hearing on this issue. The motras adopted unanimously.

ITEM #3: Rezoning request fro the Simpson family to rezone 2 parcels (approximately 8
acres) on Eno Mountain Rd from Multi-Family to R-20 (TMBL 4.38.B.24 and
24D)

Ms. Hauth said this concerned two parcels thateatly had access to Eno Mountain Road via a

private road called Shantina Lane. She said tleeaone parcel was developed as a single-family home

and the remainder was vacant. Ms. Hauth said ahely had requested the parcels be rezoned to
multi-family a number of years ago because it viresr tinterest to develop the parcels as multi-fgmil
development. She said they no longer wished teyauthat, and were requesting that the property be
rezoned the same as another family home in thaitydio R-20, which was the single-family zoning
that required a 20,000 square foot minimum lot .siZds. Hauth said these two parcels met that
requirement with the access off the private road.

Ms. Hauth read the comments from the County PlanBiepartment into the record:
e There was an unfunded and unengineered TIP retuedign Eno Mountain Road and Mayo
Street so that they intersect. One of the proposetes would divide this parcel. The



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 2 of 17

development of this parcel into single-family resides could be detrimental to the
realignment of Eno Mountain Road.

e The Orange Grove Access Management Plan callethéorealignment of Eno Mountain and
Mayo Street.

Ms. Hauth said other that questions of clarity, Bad received no comments from neighbors on this
application.

Mr. Farrelly indicated that no one had signed upgeak on this issue.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Dancy, seconded bmm@igsioner Lowen, the Board moved to
close the public hearing on this issue. The motras adopted unanimously.

I TEM #4: Rezoning Request from Kimeast Real Estate I nvestment Trust to rezone 9.65 acres
on the north side of Cardinal Drive from High Intensity Commercial to Multi-
Family (TMBL 4.42.B.3K)
Ms. Hauth said this was the vacant parcel sometlaind and beside the Holiday Inn Express. She
said there was a letter in the packet from Milledantine, as well as a letter from Greystone whe wa
the property owner of Heritage Apartments just Imat this property across the interstate. She said
that letter provided information about their opmsoon this rezoning request. Ms. Hauth said that
letter did not qualify as a Protest Petition beeatl® intervening interstate right-of-way was 366tf
wide, and State statutes allowed you to collapsead right-of-way if it was less than 100 feet. So
basically, she said, the property owner at Greystoas not within the required 100 feet to qualdy f
a Protest Petition.

Ms. Hauth stated that it could easily be constriied this application had a difficulty with the Lén
Use Plan. She said this area was designatedagsimehat Plan, so the multi-family rezoning wast
fairly consistent with that document. Ms. Hautliddater on in the agenda tonight there was a text
amendment that would set up a process to allow tioefix that, but at this point that process did no
exist in the ordinance.

Ms. Hauth read the comments from the County PlanBiepartment into the record:

e The Orange Grove Road Access Management Plan reendad the extension of Cardinal
Drive to Orange Grove Road. The preliminary slanp should show a reservation of right-of-
way for the extension and construction of Cardibiave.

e Additional right-of-way along 1-85 may be neededfigture expansion of the interstate.

Ms. Hauth said that this rezoning does not incladd#evelopment plan as part of the application, so
those two comments while very reasonable and agdpédo this request were not things that the Town
could apply to the application because they weteremiewing a development plan. She said from a
Land Use standpoint, the County made these comments
e Rezoning the property from High Intensity Commdrttaresidential was incompatible with
the adjacent interstate highway. Commercial use® Wetter suited to be located along I-85
due to noise, and the Town may want to considdr cbmmercial businesses use less water
than multi-family developments.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 3 of 17

Commissioner Lowen said that NCDOT had provideddimpinary sketch of the I-85 interchange

redesign, and asked how it would affect this prgperMs. Hauth said it would not extend deep
enough into this property, although they may las®es right-of-way along their frontage on 1-85. She
said because this was behind the Holiday Inn Espitesy would not be impacted by the interchange,
only the potential widening.

Commissioner Lowen said it was his understandiag When the widening was eventually done, land
would be taken from that center median. Ms. Haatid that was what NCDOT believed they would
be able to do with the widening of I-85. She saitte it was unengineered at this point, they a@id n
yet know what the full impact would be. Commis&phowen said whether the property was zoned
commercial or multi-family, the potential wideningpuld affect anything. Ms. Hauth said that was
correct. Commissioner Lowen said should they qaétdo anything with the property since they were
waiting on NCDOT. Ms. Hauth said the appropriateetto address that would be when they got to
the development plan phase.

Mr. Barker asked was it reasonable to defer thgsiest until they got the Comprehensive Plan. Ms.
Hauth said at the point that the Board reacheetiteof the public hearing, they might choose todea

it open for a period of time so that the applicemtild submit an application to amend the Land Use
Plan.

Stephen English, with MV Residential Developmenpast of the Miller Valentine Group, stated they
had a conceptual plan and a preliminary plan widrd@al Drive coming into this site and then
turning off. He said there would be nine residdruildings and a clubhouse on the site. Mr. Bhgl
said as Ms. Hauth had noted, that was simply cdoaépnd in order to get approval they would have
to go through the site plan process.

Mr. English introduced Diane Evans with the Nortlar@ina Affordable Housing Foundation, a
partner in the development of this property. Hel dheir company was fully integrated in the
development, construction, and management of nesale commercial, and office properties, and
provided some information on recent and past ptejedr. English said the proposed rezoning would
allow them to build 72 units of family-oriented afflable apartments. He said they would utilize tax
credits from the NC Housing Finance Agency to keeqmts at an affordable level to families and
individuals in an income range of between $14,000 $45,000. Mr. English said looking at the data
from the NC Employment Security Commission for @marCounty, that income range would include
preschool teachers, occupational therapists, pf@arteahnicians, patrol officers, legal techniciamsl
paralegals, EMS technicians, and fire fighters.

Mr. English said that the 72 units would consisaahix of 1, 2, and 3 bedrooms with square footages
ranging from 710 to 1,153 square feet. He saig tiael chosen Hillsborough after considering three
main factors, which were population growth, jobwgtie, and overall trends. Mr. English said when
looking at the Land Use Plan and how this propesg positioned, it was at the very end of an area
that the Land Use Plan had determined as residleatid was bordered on the other side by multi-
family. He said adjoining property to the rear wasposed in the Land Use Plan to be mixed use
which would typically include some type of residahias well as apartments and potentially other
uses. Mr. English said they saw the location asgoene that worked well in terms of transitioning
between those uses.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 4 of 17

Mr. English said they had spoken to the owner efHoliday Inn Express who expressed no concerns
with the proposed project and had actually felt thetting rid of the vacant lot could enhance his
business.

Mr. Barker said he was interested in having Mr. Ishgaddress the County’s comment regarding the
continuation of Cardinal Drive. Mr. English statiy had already oriented the site, and were table
fit in that drive along the south side of the pnape He said they could accommodate it if necessar
without impacting their development plan.

Mr. Barker asked would they be interested in galmgugh a more conditional site plan before they
took this step on the parcel which in some wayfeshihe entire use of that. Mr. English said idey

to proceed with the State tax credit process amause of the timing of the rezoning and quarterly
schedule that occurred here, they would need te Haeir zoning established first. He said theyewer
a very conservative company, and the cost to blaidygrior to knowing if they had a confirmation of

the tax credits for funding would have been unatatgp.

Mr. Whitlow asked if the market analysis that wasiel was a general Hillsborough market analysis or
did it take into account that the site located trigbside the interstate. Mr. English said it di&giy

took into account this site and it determined aary market area that encompassed Hillsborough and
certain surrounding areas.

Mr. Whitlow said he was having trouble with puttiadfordable housing so close to an interstate,
noting that did not seem like the best option. dded he felt uncomfortable with putting people of
lower income beside an interstate because theren@awhere else to put them. Mr. English
responded they had looked at other locations ame thvere not a lot of options. He said the Heetag
Apartments were across the interstate from thipgnty, and there were many nice apartments in the
Burlington area adjacent to 1-40.

Mr. Farrelly said the packet indicated that the kidd been marketed for over a decade for comnhercia
purposes, and asked him to comment. Mr. Englighteat Greg Spears of Spears Reality had actually
been the one marketing it, and asked him to respond

Mr. Spears said he had sold the parcel origindbgua 10 years ago, and had sold the site for the
Pantry as well as the parcel behind for a carwasit had not yet been developed. He said all
commercial interest in the property had then ceaseting that visibility of the site was poor when
you get up the hill. Mr. Spears said the onlyriest in the past two years had been as multi-family

Ms. Woodman said one of the concerns the Coungedawas water use, and asked Mr. English to
address that. Mr. English said without knowing tvitf@e other commercial use would be for
comparison, it was hard to address that. He $ajdu recognized the need for affordable housing,
then you would recognize that housing would useewatMr. English said if you did not want the
affordable housing because of the water then tlat something the Boards would have to consider.
Mr. English said all the apartments would have gyesfficient appliances, HVACs and low flow
apparatus. He said tenants moving from substandaiid would see lower bills due to better
construction quality.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 5 of 17

Mr. Farrelly said that with the number of units7&, he asked about the estimated population that
would be living there was. Mr. English replied rinavere 72 units, and they typically saw 2 to 3
people per unit, so that would be 140+.

Mr. Farrelly asked what would be the water use geson. Ms. Hauth said the estimate for multi-
family was 150 gallons a day per unit.

Commissioner Gering asked how did the affordablashmy program work over time in terms of
giving the Town assurances that the units would aremaffordable and not transition into a
commercial market with cheap housing. Mr. Engksid that was done with a deed restriction, and
with the receipt of tax credits they were obligabgdthe IRS to keep the property affordable foba 1
year period, and then the NC Housing Finance Ageegyired that it be extended for an additional 15
years, for a total of 30 years.

Ms. Faherty asked where the 100 foot buffer begad,asked was it at the edge of the property or at
the edge of the buildings. Mr. English said thatld be worked out on the site plan, but the boddi
were set away from that buffer line. He said fival site plan development would actually deterenin
that.

Commissioner Hallman said if they were to rezores ghoperty and a site plan came forward, what
review level process would be used. Hauth sawloitild require a Conditional Use Permit with the
Board of Adjustment.

Town Attorney Bob Hornik stated that at the momeitat was before them was a general use
rezoning, so they could not really consider theitkedf the plan that was shown to them. He daisl t
project exceeded the threshold for a simple TeehriReview Committee review but was a CUP
process, so conditions could be imposed to make that the plan as built would satisfy some of the
kinds of concerns expressed tonight. Mr. Hornild s this point the Board was being asked to
determine if this property was suitable for thesugermitted in a multi-family district.

Mr. Farrelly stated he had been able to deternhaé the use of water for this property was about 4
million gallons per year, but did not know whattth@presented in terms of remaining capacity. Mr.
Barker said it was not that much. Commissioneirfah said it was also $4 million in revenue.

Mr. Remington said they had a case not long agaevAgezoning was approved with a concept plan
which turned out to be exactly what the developsesited to do, but they had run into buffer
requirements that made that unworkable. He sadgrazing that this was just a concept plan, did
there appear to be anything on the plan that wootde workable in terms of buffers or anythingeels
Ms. Hauth said she had not reviewed, and had rogived a detailed scale drawing that could be
reviewed in any detail.

Mr. Remington said on the Land Use map, the cregshing to the west was mixed use residential.
Ms. Hauth said that was correct, that it was mixe® with residential, which was the same
designation as the entire Waterstone area. Mr.ilRgon asked did that mean it could include some
residential and some commercial. Ms. Hauth satwas correct.

Ms. Woodman asked was this a non-profit propersy tuthe tax credits. Mr. English replied not,ttha
they would be paying taxes.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 6 of 17

Commissioner Lloyd asked if all or only some of tiréts would be affordable. Mr. English said all
would be affordable, noting they would be availaloiehose earning between $15,000 and $45,000 a
year.

Commissioner Lloyd said then if the rent were $a0@onth, would the person pay only a percentage
of that because of the tax credits. Mr. Englisd sa, they would pay the entire rent. He saidtigh

the tax credit program, they were required to restents to a certain maximum level, and that tead
be balanced against what the actual market conditwere. Mr. English said tax credits provided
funding that allowed them to have a small mortgageich in turn gave them less debt service and
allowed them to keep the rents lower.

Commissioner Dancy said they had set the range pprsons earning $45,000, so residents could not
exceed that. Mr. English said that was correct.

Mr. Farrelly said the largest units would be 1,I&fiare feet, which would be 3 bedrooms. Mr.
English said that was correct. He asked aboutrta@mum rent. Mr. English said they had referred
to a rent of $675 which was what they were proppsincharge, but the maximum they could charge
might be slightly higher than that. He said wheoking at the market research, $675 appeared to be
the target rate. Mr. Farrelly said he asked bex@ugshe letter they had received it referred tatse
that ranged from below the current rate of $64%@ thigh of $900, with the $900 being for the 3-
bedroom units. Mr. English said the $900 3-bedramits would be his $675 units.

Commissioner Hallman reiterated what Mr. Hornik fs&id in that this plan was irrelevant to what
was being decided tonight, which was whether t®goning request to multi-family would be
approved. He said they should not be worrying atfmidetails at this point.

Mr. Farrelly said to him the details were relevdmgcause it might change the comments from
neighbors.

Ms. Wallace said if they rezoned the property dmsl applicant went away, they would need to be sure
that this was a good multi-family spot.

Mr. Hornik asked the Boards to forget about pokry what might be good for Hillsborough, noting
the law said you had to look at the suitabilitytlok site for multi-family development. He saidiigh
the applicant had good intentions to do what theg shey were going to do, it was not a relevant
consideration.

Mr. English said while this may be an irrelevanintoent, they were far enough along in their process
to have a high degree of certainty for receivingtidx credit financing.

Mr. Barker said as this project moved forward aache back for plan review, he would expect the
buildable area to shrink in a significant way. s&d if that happened, would this site remain \aabl
for multi-family. Mr. English said every site wasferent, noting you could generally build 10 w@nit
per acre and they had a cushion with this site.

Mr. Barker asked what the buildable acreage witirtburrent plan was. Mr. English said they had
some significant setbacks around the edge, andatidiant to guess at this time.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 7 of 17

Ms. Wallace asked what the maximum number of um#s that the Town’s ordinance allowed. Ms.
Hauth said for multi-family it was 9 units per acrblr. English said that would mean 86.5 would be
allowed on this site.

Ms. Woodman asked who would review the site plae,Rlanning Board or the Board of Adjustment.
Ms. Hauth responded the Board of Adjustment.

Mr. Farrelly determined that no one else was pres@n wanted to speak on this issue

Upon a motion by Commissioner Lowen, seconded bgi@ssioner Gering, the Board moved to
close the public hearing on this issue. The motias adopted unanimously.

ITEM #5: Annexation, Rezoning, and Special Use Permit request from the Banks Law Firm
for the Eno Haven project. The annexation includes 4.13 acres on US 70 East
adjacent to the Meadowlands (TMBL 4.40.A.10). The Rezoning request is for
11.52 acres currently zoned Limited office and County R-1 to be rezoned Multi-
family Special Use, with a Special Use Permit to construct 90 1- and 2-bedroom
apartmentsfor senior and disabled residents (TMBL 4.40.A.10 and part of 9D).
Ms. Hauth said this was a public hearing on theeaation, a public hearing on the rezoning, and a
public hearing on the SUP, so all speakers woudtiie be sworn. She said a person had approached
her just prior to this meeting and indicated thed tvay the agenda listed this item and the way the
notices listed this item were different, so she Ma@aitempt to clarify that. Ms. Hauth said thigject
was also a tax credit project, so was an affordadteal project. She said in the SUP process the
Board could accept the plan as presented or cataldnaconditions.

Ms. Hauth said the applicant had stated that thenmhaof the units would be available to seniorsov
met the income requirements, and some of the watdd be available to disabled persons who met
the income requirements. She said so it was Wdaiahdable housing, and senior and disabled housing.

Ms. Hauth said the applicant was seeking severalensg which could be pursued through the SUP
process. She said due to the long driveway intoptioject before you reached the parking area, the
applicant was asking for a waiver of the requirettbat the parking be separated from the street by
solid evergreen hedges of 3 feet. Ms. Hauth $eagl tvere also asking for a waiver from the off-stre
parking, and a waiver from the requirement for eation area due to the nature of the complex amd th
ages or physical capabilities of the residents.

Ms. Hauth read into the record comments from thenBoPlanning Department:

¢ Planting of nandina would not be the plant of chdir this site.

e A bus drop-off and shelter should be provided eittre US 70 East or in the complex. If the
area was provided within the complex then the paykot should provide special turning radii
for the bus.

e A right-turn table should be provided along US 7s&or people coming from Hillsborough
and turning right into the site.

e The fire access road should be connected to thiare@ road near the fire hydrant for ease of
access for emergency vehicles.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 8 of 17

e The Town should consider connecting the sidewatk@lUS 70 East to the Sportsplex on the
road right-of-way.

e Visitor parking should be designated in an areaais#p from the resident and employee
parking.

e An additional right-of-way dedication may be neeggsand should be verified with the
Department of Transportation.

e A stormwater identification should be completeddnange County Soil and Erosion Control.

e Engineering details about the retaining wall on ¢astern property line should be submitted
with the building permit or grading permit, whiclegwvas first.

e Landscaping plan showed the only tree species ab MRaple, and urban environment
biodiversity was desirable. When one species miffiom stress due to drought, pests or
diseases a different species may be favored bggiiog the development from severe die back
of the landscaping.

e Xeroscaping should be considered for the landsgapimd native drought tolerate species
should be used.

e The lighting plan should be overlaid on the langecalan so that the landscaping did not
create a security issue by limiting the light pattseand causing visibility problems.

Ms. Hauth indicated that the applicant would previadditional details and would be providing a
PowerPoint presentation as well.

Commissioner Gering said he had a question regatfti@ zoning classification, either mixed use or
residential. He asked how the project would worthwwomething that was just residential. Ms. Hauth
said in the packet she had included the languagetti out of the Land Use Plan for that, and then
read that language. She said a question for tleedBeas to determine whether what would become
one parcel was integrated enough with the adjoipiagels to quality as a mixed-use, or not. Ms.
Hauth said the fact that this site sat in betwesiteathat was already developed non-residentaaily

a site that probably would develop non-residentjati provided that residential component that made
the area a little more mixed use.

Tracy Parrot with Summit Consulting, speaking floe applicant, was sworn. He introduced Chad
Abbottt, the Project Engineer for Summit, Jim Yajihe Development Manager for Banks Law firm,

adding that Graham Robinson and Sharrad Banks alsoepresent from the Banks Law Firm. Mr.

Parrot said Mr. Ballentine, the architect for tejpct, was unable to attend this evening.

Mr. Parrot provided a summary and statistics ofpiiggect.

e The project was entitled Eno Haven, owned by Eneedd LC.

e It was affordable senior living,

e The development would be comprised of 2 main apartrbuildings, with 90 units total, with a
mix of 1 and 2 bedrooms — 66 1-bedroom at 760 sqfest and 24 2-bedroom at 960 square
feet.

e There would be a central community building conmegcthe two 3-story apartment buildings,
to be developed and operated in strict accord thighFair Housing Act.

e 80% of the units would have at least one residéritygars of age.

e 9 units would be reserved for disabled persons.

¢ Income of residents would not exceed 60% of thenBomedian income.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 9 of 17

e The applicant had met with the Department of Agang a letter was provided in the packet of
information.

e They would show that the location was appropriatel ahe application met ordinance
requirements.

Chad Abbott was sworn, and provided the Board witbopy of his PowerPoint presentation. He
provided an overview of the project, which includedite overview, adjacent properties and land,uses
photos of surrounding sites and buildings, and ddbat similar building materials were proposed for
the new building to match the surrounding structurévir. Abbott said as for the proposed project
details, it was a total of 33,000 square feet,ghgas a single main entrance for privacy and safety
that they had placed the parking and buildingshendite to protect the existing trees and provide a
wooded site, that they had received a letter floenNC Housing Finance Agency indicating that two-
thirds of a parking space per unit was averagefojects with NCHFA funding which would be 60
spaces but they were providing 92, that the sitan glccommodated buses as requested by Orange
County Planning, and that the closest structure fiiwe property line was the Orange County Charter
School at 90 feet.

Mr. Abbott, referring to a slide, indicated thattlhaded areas showed 15% and greater slopes.
Referring to a slide regarding the environmentatgxtion plan, he said it showed only 12” and large
trees, noting they had tried to keep the developrasza slender to fit on the site as well as tatlim
land disturbance.

Regarding the site plan, Mr. Abbott said it wasbldcres, it included 19% impervious surface, aed th
building was 45 feet tall on the rear and 36 feéitih the front. He said the dumpster area haghbe
considered as well as truck maneuvering and fimesg Mr. Abbott indicated they had received
preliminary approval from the Town Fire Marshal.e lddded they had not extended to the road in
order to limit disturbance, and indicated that widiks were being provided along the driveway and
frontage.

Mr. Abbott stated they had received preliminary rappl from Orange County Soil and Erosion

Control, and were using grass swales to treat statar for nitrogen. He said the fire access road
would be a stone base roadway with soil and grasseaso it was more visibly pleasing. Mr. Abbott

said the edge of the road would be outlined witliteh to increase its visibility for the fire depaent.

He said there would also be an underground charfdresome limited storage or used as an
underground vault depending on the feasibilityhaf site.

Regarding the lighting plan, Mr. Abbott said thghlis were taller along the roadway. He said shorte
more aesthetically pleasing fixtures would be usgtin the site. Mr. Abbott said in regards to the
landscaping, they would be using foundation playgiand shade trees. For the recreation plan,ithie sa
they were asking for a waiver from the requirednpmi He said to reach the required points, they
would be required to have a possible 600+ poimtd,any points applicable to the residents were not
high point value activities. He said they would lmited to providing picnic shelters and walking
trails and perhaps some garden areas. Mr. Abladadt they could not provide such amenities as
playgrounds which would carry high point values tmaiuld not be needed by the residents. He said
instead they wanted to provide walking trails ae svith perhaps a gazebo along the road and a trail
down to the creek with a picnic shelter, as welpahaps a community garden.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 10 of 17

Commissioner Lloyd asked if the lighting was goitagimpact Hospice in any way. Mr. Abbott

responded that in the lighting plan, the poles wigsdeet tall and the cut was 15 feet. He sakl th
Hospice site would look down on top of the fixtureSommissioner Lloyd said she did not want to
hear about light pollution later on. Mr. Abbottspended they were at or below the light intensity
required by ordinance.

Mr. Parrot stated they had met with DOT regardhnggroject, and in the packet was the traffic imhpac
report that had been provided to DOT and they \weraiting their comments. He said at present there
was a left turn lane into the site for westbourdfic which was driven by the existing traffic, ného
Haven.

Commissioner Hallman asked what about a decelerdtime. Mr. Parrot said that was not

recommended in the traffic impact analysis, sopilae did not include one. He said he understoed th
County’s comment on that and they would take a labk. He said typically with an access such as
this, they did not anticipate peak hour traffic.

Mr. Remington asked about the number of staff. Rarrot responded there would be one to two on
site during normal business hours, Monday througdtaly, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Commissioner Lloyd asked about the expected agessidents, and were there age restrictions for
visitors. Jim Yamin with the Banks Law Firm, afteaving been sworn, stated there would be 2 full-
time employees, a full-time site manager and atiole maintenance person. He said the population
would primarily be seniors, in that 80% of the tetsamust have at least one person per unit who was
55 or older. Mr. Yamin said the remaining 20% wbbk available to the non-elderly, with 9 units
reserved for persons with disabilities. He statesy had a contractual agreement with OPC Area
Program for management services for the disabled,tlkey would be the lead agency between the
management company and the range of other sergergcees that would provide coordinated support
services to the 9 disabled households. Mr. Yaraid hat OPC would act as the referring agency for
disabled residents. He said the remaining 9 wvotsld be available to non-elderly tenants.

Mr. Yamin said he had received a very enthusiasteption by the Director of the Orange County
Department on Aging as well as the Orange Countyigady Board on Aging. He said this project
would be comparable to Carolina Springs, which fudly occupied and had a waiting list for its 120
units. Mr. Yamin said they had provided funds dedicated transportation service to Hillsborough
and Chapel Hill 3 days a week, and its proximitytihe new Central Orange Senior Center was a
special opportunity and a big asset that wouldtadtie quality of life for a majority of the resius.

Mr. Yamin said regarding earlier comments regardingie of the potential development plans for
adjacent parcels, the current owner of the proptréy fronted NC 86 had indicated he saw this
development as playing a leading and guiding nolseitting the character for subsequent development
he might want to pursue with his parcel in the fatu

Commissioner Dancy said in regards to the non-samds, could those residents by of any age,
including children. Mr. Yamin said there could ti@ldren. Commissioner Dancy said that having
children in the development would lead to the neitg®f other amenities. Mr. Yamin said to keep in
mind there would be only 1 and two bedroom unitSommissioner Dancy said there could be 2
children in one bedroom, and asked how you couhdt khat. Mr. Yamin said they would be required
by NCHFA to allow those 9 units to be availableatty income eligible family. Mr. Yamin added the



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 11 of 17

standard rule of thumb was 1% persons per bedrblensaid they would prefer exclusivity, but there
were 9 unrestricted units.

Commissioner Lloyd said that teenagers could biedivn the development and that would have an
impact on residents as well as the nearby sch8bk asked how you would screen that. Mr. Yamin
said they took that very seriously and that was pkat of the review by State agencies that thergwe
required to follow. He said there would be cas@agars working with disabled households, and OPC
was the screening mechanism for disabled residemtsvould remain under OPC’s case management.
Mr. Yamin said his experience was over four to fyears in the program State-wide, and he was not
aware of any difficulties between disabled residemtd other residents or the general public.

Commissioner Lloyd said she was not referring josthe disabled, but to the seniors as well. She
asked could a 16-year-old live with a senior. Mamin said that could happen. Commissioner Lloyd
said she was concerned about any impact to theeZi&chool of teenagers living nearby. Mr. Yamin
said there could be a situation where a seniorah@andchild in their care, and conceivably he @oul
see that family being eligible for occupancy in ttevelopment. He said they did have very strict
lease provisions, and their property managemeesstd maintaining a safe and secure environment
for all residents. Mr. Yamin said if there was angppropriate behavior, they would be willing and
able to manage those immediately.

Mr. Whitlow said they were seeking an easement faoljoining properties to allow walking paths to
the Senior Center, and asked about the statusbf He also asked about the parking, noting itndit
seem to be enough parking and no any visitor pgrkiMr. Yamin stated they had approached the
Charter School and the Hospice for access, butndidreceive positive responses although they
planned to continue discussions. He said theyngldrio use a 6-person golf cart to move residents
back and forth if access was granted. Mr. Yamid Baregards to parking, they were exceeding that
which was required by the NCHFA, which was 60 spaead they were proposing 92. He said they
were open to revising that figure it necessaryrid & balance.

Ms. Woodman said she was wondering if the 2/3 parkpace per unit was standard for a more urban
setting. She asked what the parking arrangemestatv&€arolina Springs. Mr. Yamin responded he
did not know.

Mr. Barker asked had Town Public Works/Utilitiesr&@itor Kenny Keel reviewed the plans, and if so
were there any comments. Mr. Abbott said the plaee currently under review by Mr. Keel. Mr.
Barker said there was an area of low pressureanatea, and was curious if that could be supported
by current utilities. Mr. Abbott said again, thesre awaiting comments from the Town, but if they
found that a booster pump was needed they wouldlirene as part of the development in ensure
adequate fire flows to all parts of the development

Mr. Barker asked if the top floor would be as haghthe Summit offices. Mr. Parrot responded no, it
would not, noting this site sloped downward.

Mr. Parrot stated that a lot of information hadmeeovided, and that the application was compliéte,
met the ordinance, and was aligned with the Sti@®gowth Plan. He said this was the missing piece
for a mixed use area and would serve as a speutdrof the demographic.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 12 of 17

Chad Merritt, after having been sworn, stated he syeaking for Carl and Debbie Merritt who were
the owners of Merritt Marine, and he was the Gdndemager. He said they begin work at 6 a.m. and
worked until midnight, adding that their mechaniesrked outdoors. Mr. Merritt said the building
was within 75 feet of the property line and theyrkea to the property line. He said this proposed
project sat higher and would look down at theie.siMr. Merritt said they had a chain link fence on
the front but not on the rear, and that they weravily wooded to Brookshire but not as wooded
toward this site. He said they were concerned taless of product from their site. Mr. Merritt dai
the steepness of the site was not available foektherly, and they would prefer to be surrounded by
other businesses. He stated that this property pagisof his parents’ retirement security, and he
wanted it protected.

Ms. Hauth said for the record, the Merritt's hadmitted a qualifying Protest Petition on this site,
noting they shared the entire southern propersy. lifhe said since a portion of the site was sgekin
rezoning, it was figured on the perimeter of theolehOwl’'s Wood project, so their Protest Petition
was valid.

Vicky Jacobson, after having been sworn, statedwsigea parent at the Charter School, and most of
the teachers, staff, and parents at the Charteodboere concerned about the impact of this
development on the children at the school. She th& school had purchased the property because it
was close to Hospice and was isolated and safe. JM®bson said she did not believe connectivity
was a benefit to the school or the students. @itkthere were no guarantees that residents won't
come onto their site, use their facilities or useirt parking area. Ms. Jacobson said they alsaaid
know how many people could be in each unit. Skebisaas her understanding that the Senior Center
was not as enthusiastic about the project as shgtélde applicant. Ms. Jacobson said the projest w
first presented as a senior facility, not a loweme project. She urged the Board to deny the stque
noting the school had been there for 10 years andiged a service to the community that public
schools did not necessarily provide.

Mr. Farrelly said many schools were located in hearhoods and surrounded by lots of people, and
asked was there some specific concern Ms. Jacokapted to express. Ms. Jacobson said a specific
concern was the number of residents in a smallespagt to the school and the low-income aspect.
She said the site was very close and they did aot any cut-throughs. Ms. Jacobson said thereawas
very real concern about screening of applicantssaety for children.

Commissioner Lowen stated that many schools wem®wuded by people. He said he just did not
understand the concern of safety, noting to hisoitnded elitist. Commissioner Lowen said he was
shocked to hear those concerns, adding he dideeahg negative impact of a project that was tathet
to senior living. Ms. Jacobson said you generdily not have apartments next to schools, and
mentioned Few Gardens near Duke. She asked hoviotkie would reassure the parents and staff.

Commissioner Lowen asked how you would assure aghboring property, noting someone could
always cross a property line. He said at sometpbis property would be developed, and if it was n
this particular development it would be somethifsgeeeven commercial. Commissioner Lowen said
he was concerned that low income was perceiveddrate dangerous behavior and that a lower
income development would increase the possibilitywappropriate activity. Ms. Jacobson asked how
Commissioner Lowen would feel if it was his progeahd people he did not know were crossing onto
his property without his permission. She said ¢bst of putting up a fence along the property line



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 13 of 17

would be staggering, and would also make it a meg@tmosphere for children. She also mentioned
the increased traffic and the negative impactwmaild have on the school.

Commissioner Lowen said he heard Ms. Jacobson’setos, but believed she was insinuating that
this development would not be peaceful even thatiglas targeted to senior citizens. Ms. Jacobson
asked had anyone addressed the number of peopleothld reside in each unit, noting she believed it
was 5 or 6 residents per unit. Ms. Hauth saidGbde did not speak to that generally, but housing
laws required a certain square footage per peraath,she did not believe in a 2-bedroom unit you
could possibly have more than 4 people, with 2 feeopa 1-bedroom.

Jamie Daniel, after having been sworn, stated teanzarent of two children who attended the Charter
School. He said he was concerned about safetysiotor the children and staff, but for the resitie

of the proposed development as well. He said illd/mot matter if these were $300,000 townhomes
or low-income units, because to him security arfdtgavas the primary issue. Mr. Daniel discussed
the federal laws that said you could not commitriene within 1,000 feet of a school, nor carry a
weapon on school grounds. He said he was wondaomgclose the edge of that facility was to the
Charter School, which would also impact any easéntsat would be presented to the Board of
Directors of the Charter School. Mr. Daniel séiere would be no way the Charter School could
provide an easement because of the federal lavi tlsere was a crime committed within those limits
it would be a felony.

Mr. Daniel said his other concern was that he did believe there was another high density

development, like an apartment complex, in Orangan®/ that was near one of the Orange County
schools. He said there had already been one micidbere a bounty hunter had chased a suspect
through school grounds.

Commissioner Lowen said that was several yearatgfland Cheeks, and that would have happened
whether there was a high density development reittdr a single-family home. Mr. Daniel agreed,
and that was his point. He said it did not mattbether the development next to the Charter School
was high income or low income. Mr. Daniel alsoatbthat out of 92 parking spaces, there was only 4
set aside of handicap parking, and this was suptmobave disabled residents. He said they had also
not designed DOT to take over the Class C road,Tgo could not run a bus there nor could they run
an Orange County school bus if any persons in éveldpment attended school. Mr. Daniel said they
also did not address the fact of whether the agplibad to be 55 or older to live in these unitke

said it was possible that a senior could applytii@ unit and someone much younger with children
would actually occupy the unit. Mr. Daniel said@hot addressed was whether the person applying
for the unit had to be low income, but they hadyadid that the senior had to be 55 or older. &lé s
that meant that this development qualified morestarior housing than it did for low-income housing,
so the zoning did not quite make sense.

Mr. Daniel also mentioned the sidewalk that waswshto go all the way to US 70A, noting he had
driven that area many times and had never seetlevalk. He said another concern not voiced was
that they had no problem with low-income, high-im@ or whatever, but what they were really
concerned about was people encroaching upon teeysaid security of the school. Mr. Daniel noted
that there were 84 registered sex offenders in @g&ounty, and 7 were within half a block of a bus
stop. He said whether you were rich or poor, viiluared about your children, and if that fagilit
was that close to the back door of the schoolas & concern.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 14 of 17

Mr. Whitlow asked if they would be opposed to thejgct if the developer said they were going to put

in a sidewalk in the public right-of-way along U®.7 He asked was that perceived to be just as
dangerous to the school to have people walkinghenstdewalk as to not have the sidewalk. Mr.

Daniel said these would be senior citizens walkdeghaps to the Sportsplex, and that in itself was
dangerous because of the traffic. He said you evoekd slow-down lanes just to make sure no one
was rear-ended.

Mr. Barker asked had Mr. Daniel seen any accidenthat area in the last five years. Mr. Daniel
responded he had. Mr. Barker said the statigtieg had indicated only two in the last five yeak4.
Daniel said he had seen a few on US 70 and BusifesHe said last year alone he had been first
responder on three incidents. Mr. Barker statatwas not supported by the traffic study.

Chad Merritt indicated that he had withessed ardaat 300 feet from the Sportsplex today.

Mr. Jones asked what would be acceptable in his agea parent on this parcel. Mr. Daniel said he
did not like that the school had an open playgrouinat he would like to see more restrictions put o
the housing; he would like to see that no registesex offenders were allowed in the complex; he
would like to see a 6’ fence enclosing the propeatyd, that a sidewalk along US 70 with barriers
from traffic be included.

Ms. Faherty said she had assumed that the screpnomgss of applicants would include criminal
records for sex offenders of other criminal ackgt Mr. Yamin said absolutely, noting they weas n
proposing a nuisance. He said credit and crimshaicks would be conducted on all residents, and
they would be monitored for compliance annuallyNsyHFA and reported to the IRS. He said those
provisions were in place for 30 years. Mr. Yamtded they had more restrictions than any market
rate complex.

Ms. Faherty asked what would be the number of geapleach unit. Mr. Yamin responded the
average was 1.5 persons per bedroom.

Ms. Faherty asked was the 55 year age requiremenhé applicant. Mr. Yamin replied yes, noting
there would be income and age verifications fohaaut, reported annually.

Mr. Farrelly said they may be listed, but were thegily living there. Mr. Yamin said there would b

a full-time site manager, and this person wouldabguainted with all the residents. He said it woul
be their job to personally get to know the residenbting that if it was found that the applicargsw

not living in the unit that would be a lease viaat

Ms. Woodman asked about the statistics on the medie. Mr. Yamin said the majority of the
residents would be older than 55, noting the dgaeknt was for independent living.

Mr. Farrelly said he would imagine that a teenageuld find this site to be “hell” and would not wtan
to come. He asked was it common for seniors tce lgrandchildren in such a development. Mr.
Yamin responded anecdotally he had not seen atdrehiin senior developments during his visits.

Mr. Barker asked was there any response to theecoscaised by the Merritt’s. Mr. Yamin said that
fencing was always an option since “good fencesergabd neighbors,” and they were willing to
establish the boundaries. Mr. Yamin added he pallen personally to the Merritt's a few weeks ago



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 15 of 17

to personally present the proposal, and providethtthe opportunity to contact him whenever they
felt it necessary to exchange information or aséstjons.

Mr. Merritt stated he meant no offense, but withtthack area not being lit, he did not believefad-
fence or even an 8-foot fence would keep out anymre the development out of your yard. He said
the only way to solve that would be to light thearand that would create another nuisance to those
living in the units on that side. Mr. Yamin statieel did not agree with that. He said they had@& 10
foot driveway there, and it was a matter of justkivey across the road where there was severalamilli
dollars worth of boats just sitting in the lot. Mfamin said this would not be a development wizere
many people as wanted to could live in a unit, mptheir management policies would provide them
full awareness of what was happening within theettgument, including who was occupying the units.

Mr. Farrelly said he wanted to discontinue the bac#t forth, noting that the concerns had beendstate
and the points had been made. He suggested thambfritt and Mr. Yamin talk one-on-one to
address any concerns.

Mr. Barker asked what the Town’s ordinance requiredegards to parking. Ms. Hauth responded
180. Mr. Barker said then basically this propasas for roughly half the number of required parking

spaces, and the presumption was you would haver flear&ers because you had older residents. Mr.
Yamin said that had been the experience of the NECIitf previous developments they had been

funding over the years.

Mr. Barker asked had they done a similar changanynother project in the past. Ms. Hauth said they
had never had a similar application where waivimgparking could be considered.

Commissioner Hallman asked did some of the questiegarding comparable numbers need to be in
the record of the public hearing. Mr. Hornik s¢éhé specific question could be asked and the public
hearing closed, then the information could be pegliafter that time.

Commissioner Hallman said they had mentioned Qaadiprings as a comparison, so he would like to
know the median age of its residents as well ap#nking ratios used. Mr. Yamin said they would be
happy to supply that information.

Mr. Hornik wondered whether on this site there wasarea that could possibly be reserved for future
expansion parking if it was found that 92 was ndfisient.

Ms. Jacobson asked for any comparisons on 3-stotalrunits built this close to a school.

Mr. Whitlow said he would like to have more infortima regarding the transportation service, such as
how often and where.

Commissioner Gering said he would like them to &hen whether transportation services could
access the site, noting he was referring to Mr.i@anquestions.

Mr. Yamin noted that the driveway was built to allthe bus to access it. Mr. Parrot added that they
anticipated that heavier duty pavement would bel irs¢he bus area.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 16 of 17

Commissioner Gering said he would like to see diemadrawings as you looked back up the slope.
Mr. Parrot said elevation drawings had been pralidehe packet.

Mr. Parrot said they had been sensitive to the emscexpressed tonight all along. He said they had
indicated that they would consider sharing the obst fence. Mr. Parrot said they also understood
and appreciated the concerns raised by the Merritiis said one distinction that needed to be made
was that this would be a different population tlvatld not be invalids or require daily care, antheo
would likely still be in the workforce. Mr. Parrgiid the concerns about lighting and noise existed
already for the facilities in proximity to Merrillarine, so this development should be of less aonce
than those already in existence.

Mr. Barker stated he wanted to be sure all of tbar®y’s comments were addressed.

Jamie Daniel said he would like clarification abthé access driveway from Business 70 back into the
facility. Mr. Parrot said they expected the roadrteet or exceed DOT policy.

Philip Weber, after having been sworn, stated he avparent of the Charter School. He said he was
confused, noting he believed the project was veejl thought out but wondered why the property
should be rezoned to accommodate this projectsaitkhe did not see the driving need to change the
zoning for this property for this project. Mr. Watsaid the other property owners in the area had t
expectation that the zoning would remain the saMe.Parrot said that was a valid question. Hd sai
the Land Use Plan called for mixed use with redidgrand this project was consistent with that and
would be the project that added the residentialpmment to the area and made it mixed use.

Mark O’Neal, after having been sworn, provided sauaeing history on this property. He said it had

been zoned Industrial when it was in the Countyissgiction and remained that why when annexed.
Mr. O’Neal said it was down-zoned to Limited Offieehen the Entranceway Special Use zone was
implemented. He said the Town had always expdbisdaite to be rezoned in some manner.

Mr. Farrelly determined that no one else was pres@io wanted to speak on this issue.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Hallman, secondedbgmissioner Gering, the Board moved to
close the public hearing on this issue. The motias adopted unanimously.

ITEM #6: Zoning Ordinance text amendment to amend Section 20 to establish a process to
amend the Land Use Plan in conjunction with rezoning requests.
Ms. Hauth said when the Town Board adopted the Wasel Plan in December, they had realized they
needed to put a process in the ordinance to allenmsgms to request both an amendment to the Land
Use Map along with a rezoning for their propertghe said the option they had selected was in the
packet, which would allow persons to submit a pekg@rocess, or a joint application, to addresibot
an amendment to the Land Use Map and provide specfbrmation to support their argument to
change the Land Use Map to allow their rezoningiestjto come forward in conjunction with their
request for a rezoning. Ms. Hauth said the intdrthis amendment was to set up that process and
establish some basic requirements for an applicatothe Board would have some information to use
in its review of the request. She said a fee waigd have to be established for that process.

Mr. Farrelly determined that no one was present whnted to speak on this issue.



April 17, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 17 of 17

Upon a motion by Commissioner Hallman, secondedbgmissioner Lowen, the Board moved to
close the public hearing on this issue. The motias adopted unanimously.

ITEM #7: Adjourn.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Lowen, seconded bgni@ssioner Dancy, the Board moved to

adjourn the joint public hearing at 10:10 p.m. Thation was adopted unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Mgt A Houdh

Margaret A. Hauth, Secretary




